
MIN. VOL. 65 PAGE 141 06/20/12 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCILIREDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

OF THE CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA 
CONVENED TIDS 20TH DAY OF JUNE, 2012 7:13 P.M. 

AMEDEE O. "DICK" RICHARDS, JR., COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1424 MISSION STREET 

ROLL CALL, INVOCATION, 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

CLOSED SESSION 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Mayor Cacciotti convened the open session of the 
regular meeting of the South Pasadena City Council/ 
Redevelopment Successor Agency (Agency) at 7:13 
p.m. City Clerk! Agency Secretary Kilby called the 
roll. City Councilmembers/ Agency Members present: 
Joe, Khubesrian and Schneider; Mayor Pro Tern! 
Agency Vice Chair Putnam; and Mayor/Agency 
Chair Cacciotti. Absent: None. Other officials pre
sent: City Manager/Agency Executive Director 
Gonzalez; Assistant City Attorney/Assistant Agency 
Counsel Tsai; Police Chief Payne; Fire Chief 
Wallace; Finance Director Thai; City Librarian 
Fjeldsted; Public Works Director Toor; Community 
Services Director Pautsch; Planning and Building 
Director Watkins; Transportation Manager Woods; 
and City Clerk Kilby. 

Councilmember Schneider offered the invocation and 
led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Assistant City Attorney Tsai said that at approximate
ly 6:00 p.m., Mayor Pro Tern Putnam called the reg
ular meeting of the South Pasadena City Council/ Re
development Successor Agency to order. She said all 
members of the City Council ultimately were present. 
She said there was no one from the public wishing to 
speak on items on the Closed Session agenda. Mayor 
Pro Tem Putnam recessed the meeting into Closed 
Session, she said, and the Council considered those 
items on the Closed Session agenda. On Item #3, 
concerning labor negotiations allowed into Closed 
Session pursuant to Government Code Section 
54957.6, she said the City Council had a conference 
with its labor negotiators concerning negotiations with 
all bargaioiog units in the City as listed on the Closed 
Session agenda. She said the City negotiators are City 
Manager Sergio Gonzalez and Special Counsel Richard 
Kreisler. The City negotiators provided the City Council 
with an update concerning the labor negotiations, she 
said. The City Council took no action, she said, and 



MIN. VOL. 65 

PRESENTATION OF 
CERTIFICATES OF 
RECOGNITION TO SOUTH 
PASADENA RESIDENTS 
GRETCHEN ROBINETTE 
AND KAY MOURADIAN, 
RECIPIENTS OF CONGRES
SMAN ADAM SCHIFF'S 
2012 "WOMEN OF THE 
YEAR" AWARD 

PRESENTATION OF 
PROCLAMATION 
DECLARING JULY 2012 AS 
PARKS MAKE LIFE 
BETTER® MONTH 

PRESENTATION OF CERTI
FICATES OF APPRECIA
TION TO RETIRING 
LONGSTANDING CITY OF 
SOUTH PASADENA 
EMPLOYEES DIANA 
HARDER, PUBLIC WORKS 
ASSISTANT, PUBLIC 
WORKS DEPARTMENT; 
BATTALION CHIEF PHIL 
GUIRAL, FIRE DEPART-

PAGE 142 06/20/12 

there is nothing further to report on this item. The City 
Council also considered Item #4, she said, one matter 
of anticipated litigation, which is allowed into Closed 
Session pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.9(b). The City Council received a briefing from 
Special Counsel on a claim filed by the South Pasadena 
Police Officers' Association, she said. The City Council 
took no action on this matter, she said, and there is 
nothing to report. The City Council also considered 
Item #5, she said, which concerns one matter of pending 
litigation, allowed into Closed Session pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9(a). She said she 
provided the City Council with a briefing on the case, 
Riner Scivally et aI., vs. City of South Pasadena (BS 
133948). The Council took no action on this matter, she 
said, and there is nothing further to report. 

Mayor Cacciotti presented Certificates of Recog
nition to South Pasadena residents Gretchen 
Robinette and Kay Mouradian, recipients of 
Congressman Adam Schiffs 2012 "Women of the 
Year" Award. 

Mayor Cacciotti presented a proclamation to Mark 
Langill, Chair, Parks and Recreation Commission; 
and Evelyn Zneimer and Ron Rosen, Members, Parks 
and Recreation Commission, declaring July 2012 as 
"Parks Make Life Better® Month." Commissioner 
Zneimer made announcements and distributed a 
brochure. 

Mayor Cacciotti presented Certificates of Apprecia
tion to retiring longstanding City of South Pasadena 
employees Diana Harder, Public Works Assistant, 
Public Works Department; and Battalion Chief Phil 
Guiral, Fire Department. They both made remarks. 



MIN. VOL. 65 

MENT; AND CAPTAIN 
DANNY DE ANGELIS, FIRE 
DEPARTMENT 

PRESENTATION BY LISSA 
REYNOLDS, SOUTH 
PASADENA ARTS 
COUNCIL (SP ARC) 

COUNCILMEMBERS' 
COMMENTS 

CITY MANAGER 
COMMUNICATIONS 

REORDERING OF AND 
ADDITIONS TO THE 
AGENDA 

MAYOR'S APPOINTMENTS 
AND REAPPOINTMENTS 
Ryan Nakakura 
Aydin Pasebani 
Evelyn Beadle 

APPROVAL OF THE 
MINUTES OF THE 
REGULAR MEETING OF 
JUNE 6, 2012 

APPROVAL OF PREPAID 
WARRANTS IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $559,813.83, 
GENERAL CITY 
WARRANTS IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $359,485.43 
AND PAYROLL IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $424,692.32 

PAGE 143 06/20112 

Mayor Cacciotti introduced Lissa Reynolds, who 
made a presentation about the South Pasadena Arts 
Council (SP ARC), urging all to purchase arts vehicle 
license plates to raise funds for arts education. She 
displayed materials on the overhead projector and 
distributed materials. 

Mayor Cacciotti requested that Councilmember 
Comments be taken up later. No objections were 
voiced, and he said that this change in the agenda was 
so ordered. 

City Manager Gonzalez announced the City 
Council's summer meeting schedule. He described 
the City's upcoming 4th of July festivities. 

Mayor Pro Tern Putnam made a motion to move Item 
#28, State Auditor, ahead of Item #27, Senate Bill 
204, seconded by Councilmember Schneider. 
Without opposition, Mayor Cacciotti said that this 
was so ordered. 

By voice vote (5 ayes), the City Council approved 
Mayor Cacciotti's proposal to reappoint Ryan 
Nakakura, Aydin Pasebani, and Evelyn Beadle to the 
Youth Commission for two-year terms ending June 
2014. 

(putnam, Joe) 

By roll call vote (5 ayes), the City Council approved 
the minutes ofthe regular meeting of June 6, 2012. 

(Putnam, Joe) 

By roll call vote (5 ayes), the City Council approved 
prepaid warrants #173430-173476 in the amount of 
$599.813.83, General City warrants #173477-173619 
in the amount of $359,485.43, and payroll 06-08-12 
in the amount of $424,692.32. The City Council 
approved Redevelopment Successor Agency warrants 
for $7,795.54 (included in above total). 



MIN. VOL. 65 

ADOPTION OF 
RESOLUTION NO. 7225 
DETERMINING AND 
ESTABLISHING AN 
APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012-13 
INACCORDANCE~TH 

ARTICLE XIII OF THE 
CALIFORNIA 
CONSTITUTION 

VARIOUS 
DISCRETIONARY FUND 
REQUESTS BY THE CITY 
COUNCIL 

DESIGNATION OF CITY 
MANAGER SERGIO 
GONZALEZ AS VOTING 
DELEGATE AND COUNCIL
MEMBER MARINA 
KHUBESRIAN AND 
FINANCE DIRECTOR CHU 
THAI AS ALTERNATES 
REPRESENTING THE CITY 
OF SOUTH PASADENA AT 

PAGE 144 06/20/12 

(Putnam, Joe) 

By roll call vote (5 ayes), the City Council adopted 
Resolution No. 7225, A RESOLUTION OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SOUTH PASA
DENA, CALIFORNIA, DETERMINING AND ES
TABLISHING AN APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2012-13 IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
ARTICLE XIII B OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTI
TUTION AND GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 
7910. 

(Putnam, Joe) 

By roll call vote (5 ayes), the City Council approved 
various FY 2011-12 discretionary fund requests by 
the City Council: Mayor Cacciotti' s request to 
allocate $1,000 to the 4th of July Festival of Balloons 
Com-mittee, $1,000 to the proposed community 
garden, $1,500 to the Clean-Air Car Show, and $400 
to the Natural Resources and Environmental 
Commission for tree plantings; Councilmember 
Khubesrian's re-quest to allocate $500 to the 4th of 
July Festival of Balloons festivities, and $1,500 to the 
proposed community garden; Mayor Pro Tem 
Putnam's request to allocate $1,500 to the 4th of July 
Festival of Balloons Committee, and $2,500 toward 
the City's plarmed emergency notification system; 
and Coun-cilmember Schneider's request to allocate 
$1,000 to the 4th of July Festival of Balloons 
Committee, $1,000 to the proposed community 
garden, and $2,000 to the Natural Resources and 
Environmental Commission for tree plantings. 

(Putnam, Joe) 

By roll call vote ( 5 ayes), the City Council designated 
City Manager Sergio Gonzalez as the voting delegate 
and Councilmember Marina Khubesrian and Finance 
Director Chu Thai as alternates representing the City 
of South Pasadena at the League of California Cities' 
Annual Business Meeting on September 7, 2012, in 
San Diego, California. 

(Putnam, Joe) 



MIN. VOL. 65 

THE LEAGUE OF CALI
FORNIA CITIES' ANNUAL 
BUSINESS MEETING ON 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2012, IN SAN 
DIEGO, CALIFORNIA 

APPROVAL OF A CALPERS 
RESOLUTION NO. 7226 
SETTING THE AMOUNT 
PAID BY THE CITY FOR 
EMPLOYEES' AND 
RETIREES'/ANNUITANTS' 
HEALTH BENEFIT PLAN 

AWARD OF CONTRACT TO 
E.C. CONSTRUCTION IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $289,485 
FOR THE GLENDON WAY 
AND EL CENTRO STREET 
RAIL CROSSING 
MODIFICATION PROJECT 

AWARD OF CONTRACT TO 
E.C. CONSTRUCTION 
COMPANY IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $159,240 FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
MOUNTAIN VIEW STREET 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

PAGE 145 06/20/12 

By roll call vote (5 ayes), the City Council adopted 
Resolution No. 7226, A RESOLUTION OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SOUTH PASA
DENA, CALIFORNIA, FIXING THE EMPLOY
ER'S CONTRIBUTION UNDER THE PUBLIC 
EMPLOYEES' MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE 
ACT. 

(Putnam, Joe) 

By roll call vote (5 ayes), the City Council accepted 
a bid dated May 8, 2012, from E. C. Construction for 
the construction of the Glendon Way and EI Centro 
Street Rail Crossing Modification Project; authorized 
budget transfers from surplus funds from the 
following completed projects to the Gold Line Miti
gation Fund account 223 to fully fund this project: 
South Lane/Warwick Place Street Improvement Pro
ject Phase II, Account Number 101-9000-9356, for 
$19,000; Hermosa Street Improvement Project Ac
count Number 101-9000-9357 for $8,500; Indiana 
Avenue Street Improvement Project Account Number 
101-9000-9376 for $50,500; Pasadena Avenue Street 
Improvement Project Account Number 101-9000-
9377 for $27,836; and authorized the City Manager to 
enter into a contract with E.C. Construction for a not
to-exceed amount of$289,485. 

(Putnam, Joe) 

By roll call vote (5 ayes), the City Council accepted 
a bid dated May 29, 2012, from E.C. Construction 
Company for the construction of the Mountain View 
Street Improvement Project; rejected all other bids 
received; authorized a budget transfer in the amount 
of $49,224 from General Fund reserves to Mountain 
View Street Improvement Project Account 101-9000-
9384 to fully fund this project; and authorized the 
City Manager to enter into a contract with E.C. 
Construction Company for a not-to-exceed amount of 
$159,240. 



MIN. VOL. 65 

AWARD OF CONTRACT TO 
SEQUEL CONTRACTORS, 
INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$207,510 FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
VIA DEL REY STREET 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

ACCEPTANCE OF PRO
JECT COMPLETION AND 
AUTHORIZATION TO FILE 
A NOTICE OF COMPLE
TION FOR THE CITY HALL 
AIR CONDITIONING PRO
JECT, AND AUTHORIZA
TION TO RELEASE 
RETENTION PAYMENT IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $7,980 TO 
ARTIC MECHANICAL, INC. 

AWARD OF CONTRACT IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $78,396 
TO GK & ASSOCIATES FOR 
CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGEMENT AND 
INSPECTION SERVICES 
FOR PASADENA AVENUE 
STREET IMPROVEMENT 
PROJECT PHASE II, 
MOUNTAIN VIEW STREET 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
AND VIA DEL REY STREET 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

FORMATION OF A CITY 
COUNCIL AD-HOC COM
MITTEE COMPRISED OF 
COUNCILMEMBERS DR. 
SCHNEIDER AND DR. 
KHUBESRIAN TO EX
PLORE THE ESTABLISH
MENT OF A LOCAL 
COMMUNITY GARDEN 

PAGE 146 06/20112 

(Putnam, Joe) 

By roll call vote (5 ayes), the City Council accepted 
a bid dated May 31, 2012, from Sequel Contractors, 
Inc., for the construction of the Via Del Rey Street 
Improvement Project; rejected all other bids received; 
and authorized the City Manager to enter into a 
contract with Sequel Contractors, Inc., for a not-to
exceed amount of $207,510. 

(putnam, Joe) 

By roll call vote (5 ayes), the City Council accepted 
the project improvements and completion of the City 
Hall Air Conditioning Project; authorized the issu
ance of a Notice of Completion for the project; and 
authorized payment of the retention to Artic 
Mechanical, Inc., in the amount of$7,980. 

(putnam, Joe) 

By roll call vote (5 ayes), the City Council accepted a 
proposal dated May 31, 2012, from GK & Associates 
for construction management and inspection services 
for Pasadena Avenue Street Improvement Project 
Phase II, Mountain View Street Improvement Project 
and Via Del Rey Street Improvement Project; 
rejected all other proposals received; and authorized 
the City Manager to execute an agreement with GK 
& Associates for a not-to-exceed amount of$78,396. 

(Putnam, Joe) 

By roll call vote (5 ayes), the City Council 
established a City Council ad hoc committee 
consisting of Councilmembers Khubesrian and 
Schneider to explore the establishment of a local 
community garden. 

(putnam, Joe) 



MIN. VOL. 65 

MONTHLY INVESTMENT 
REPORTS FOR APRIL 2012 

APPROVAL OF 
RESOLUTION NO. 7224 
ADOPTING THE FY 2012/13 
BUDGET 

PURCHASE OF 
ADMINISTRATIVE 
VEIDCLE FOR THE 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

PAGE 147 06/20/12 

By roll call vote (5 ayes), the City Council, and the 
City Council seated as the Successor Agency to the 
Community Redevelopment Agency, approved to 
receive and file the monthly investment reports for 
April 2012. 

(Putnam, Joe) 

Ann Penn, 2065 Oak Street, President, Library Board of 
Trustees, expressed appreciation to the City for the 
funding that the Library has received over past years. 
She said the Library's use is intense, providing April 
2012 usage statistics. She said this kind of usage 
demands service and materials. Jim Tranquada, 2036 
Amherst, Member, Library Board of Trustees, thanked 
the City Council for funding the Americans with Disa
bilities (ADA) work on the library elevator and the new 
collections module. He acknowledged the efforts of 
staff. 

Pamela Dong, 1205 Orange Grove Avenue, said she and 
her neighbors are here to bring attention to street repairs 
needed on Orange Grove Avenue. She asked the City 
Council to re-examine the budget and "make good on 
its promise to repair the street." Mayor Pro Tern Putnam 
responded that these repairs will be undertaken with the 
planned Monterey Road repairs. 

Mayor Cacciotti pointed out an error in the staff report 
regarding the renewable energy sources reserve 
account; Finance Director Thai said that this is 
$250,000 and will be corrected. 

By roll call vote (5 ayes), the City Council approved 
Resolution No. 7224, A RESOLUTION OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SOUTH PASA
DENA, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2012113 BUDGET. 

(putnam, Khubesrian) 

Bob Cook, 5063 Collis Avenue, asked about the 
inventory of the Police Department fleet, which was 
attached to the staff report. Police Chief Payne 
explained the meaning of "NI A" under the "mileage" 
column for certain vehicles. He said that mileage is 
not tracked on the small electric vehicles. Mr. Cook 
asked whether the Peacekeeper vehicle will have a 



MIN. VOL. 65 

AWARD OF CONTRACT TO 
E.C. CONSTRUCTION 
COMPANY IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $391,310 FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
PASADENA AVENUE 
STREET IMPROVEMENT 
PROJECT PHASE II 

AUTHORIZATION TO 
AMEND GEOTECHNICAL 
AND MATERIALS TESTING 
SERVICES CONTRACT 
WITH NINYO & MOORE IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $15,300 
FOR PASADENA AVENUE 
PHASE II, VIA DEL REY 
AND MOUNTAIN VIEW 
STREET IMPROVEMENT 
PROJECTS 

PAGE 148 06/20112 

radio; Chief Payne responded that it would and that 
the radio is in the existing inventory. 

Mayor Cacciotti made a motion to continue this to a 
future meeting, seconded by Councilmember 
Schneider. He said that the Public Safety Commission 
met Monday night, and that they wanted to have 
another month to review the request. This was 
approved by voice vote (5 ayes). 

Victor Robinette, 921 Indiana Avenue, said that 
Pasadena Avenue is moribund. Since the street has so 
little traffic, he asked why so much is being spent to 
repair it. 

Mayor Pro Tern Putnam and Public Works Director 
Toor responded. Transportation Manager Woods 
responded to a question about the adjacent 
intersection where the Gold Line crosses. 

By roll call vote (5 ayes), the City Council accepted 
a bid dated May 22, 2012, from E.C. Construction 
Company for the construction of the Pasadena 
Avenue Street Improvement Project Phase II; rejected 
all other bids received; and authorized the City 
Manager to enter into a contract with E.C. 
Construction Company for a not-to-exceed amount of 
$391,310. 

(Putnam, Joe) 

Victor Robinette, 921 Indiana Avenue, asked what 
evidence there is for the expenditures being proposed 
on Indiana Avenue. He asked about traffic counts and 
real data to support the decisions for allocating funds. 
Public Works Director Toor responded. 

By roll call vote (5 ayes), the City Council au
thorized the City Manager to sign a contract 
amendment in the amount of $15,300 to Ninyo & 
Moore for geotechnical and materials testing services 
for three upcoming capital improvement projects: 
Pasadena Avenue Phase II, Via Del Rey, and 
Mountain View Street Improvement Projects. 

(Putnam, Schneider) 



MIN. VOL. 65 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Work on Monterey Road and 
impact in Los Angeles 

Brown Act Preamble 

PROVIDE COMMENTS TO 
THE CALIFORNIA STATE 
AUDITOR ON THE 
MANAGEMENT OF THE 
CAL TRANS-OWNED 
PROPERTIES WITHIN THE 
710 FREEWAY EXTENSION 

PAGE 149 06/20/12 

Dr. Tom Williams, no address stated, LA 32 Neigh
borhood Council, El Sereno, said that his Council is 
interested in the City's work on Monterey Road. Los 
Angeles is doing work on Soto Street, he said, and an 
alternative to Fremont A venue is being constructed. 

Bob Cook, 5063 Collis Avenue, requested that the 
Mayor read the Brown Act preamble at the beginning 
of each Council meeting. He pointed out that it is 
printed, framed and hung on the Council Chambers 
wall. Mayor Cacciotti agreed to do this. 

Mayor Cacciotti introduced Bill Bogaard, Mayor, 
City of Pasadena. Transportation Manager Woods 
introduced representatives from the California State 
Auditor: Joanne Quarles, Debbie Meador, and Daniel 
Anderson, Audit Supervisor. He provided an over
view of the issue. Joanne Quarles, Audit Principal, 
took a seat at the dais. He said the Auditors can 
answer questions about procedure only and cannot 
release any documents until the audit is completed. 

Mayor Cacciotti extended professional courtesy to 
elected officials and representatives of elected 
officials by inviting them to speak first. He 
introduced those in the audience. 

Bill Bogaard, Mayor, City of Pasadena, said when he 
took office in 1999, he began exploring ways in 
which Caltrans-owned homes could be sold, without 
much success. He submitted an inventory of the 
homes to the State Auditor that was undertaken by 
the City of Pasadena with cooperation of Caltrans. He 
provided examples of problems that exist with the 
properties within the City of Pasadena. 

Arturo Gonzalez, EI Sereno Area Director, Office of 
Los Angeles City Councilmember Jose Huizar, Dis
trict 14, said there are more than 300 Caltrans-owned 
properties in his area. He said the audit will prove 
beneficial. He thanked the City of South Pasadena for 
its leadership. 

Julianne Hines, District Director, Office of Anthony 
Portantino, Assemblymember, 44th District, ac
knowledged efforts of those who coordinated this op
portunity and thanked the State Auditor's Office for 



MIN. VOL. 65 PAGE 150 06/20/12 

attending. She said Assemblymember Portantino re
quested that the audit be undertaken. She outlined 
issues relating to the promised feasibility study for 
the SR-710 extension tunnel. The integrity of the 
entire project is being called into question, she said. 
Much time is spent by the Assemblymember's staff 
on issues pertaining to problems with Caltrans-owned 
properties, she said. 

Sam Burgess, 626 Prospect Avenue, #B, spoke about 
the deteriorated condition of properties owned by 
Caltrans. He said that the City may soon be 
represented by long-time proponents of extending the 
SR-710 freeway. 

Christopher Sutton, attorney, no address stated, said 
he has provided advice to the 710 Tenants' Associa
tion for more than 20 years, to individual tenants for 
30 years, and advice to the No 710 Coalition. He 
spoke about issues with the properties and Caltrans. 
He said revenues are being lost that are required to be 
paid to cities and counties. 

Dr. Tom Williams, LA 32 Neighborhood Council, El 
Sereno resident, spoke about issues with Caltrans 
housing in EI Sereno. Residents are afraid to com
plain, he said, for fear of retribution or eviction. He 
asked the Auditor to provide a toll-free number for 
residents to provide information. He distributed 
materials. 

Marie Salas, El Sereno, a l7-year Caltrans property 
tenant, said she has witnessed problems and has 
spoken out. She said she is afraid of eviction. She 
described problems with the properties. She invited 
the Auditor to El Sereno. She requested an extension 
so that El Sereno residents "can tell the true story." 

Mary Ann Parada, 1710 Ramona Avenue, showed 
photographs of 50-year-old Caltrans properties in 
poor condition and two community gardens created 
by neighbors on the overhead projector. 

Waynna Kato, 1036 Hope Street, who said she is 
representing Women Involved in South Pasadena 
Political Action (WISPPA), thanked the Auditor's 
Office and the City Council. She spoke about 



MIN. VOL. 65 PAGE 151 06/20112 

maintenance problems with the properties and other 
issues. She recommended that Caltrans declare the 
properties surplus and develop a plan to sell them. 
She requested an inventory of all properties. She 
recommended that all properties be brought up to 
standard and be maintained. 

Anne Alderson, 929 South Pasadena Avenue, 
Pasadena, a 30-year Caltrans tenant, displayed photo
graphs of a property in poor condition and submitted 
them to the State Auditor. She described exorbitant 
costs incurred to improve a deteriorated property. She 
said she has been exposed to asbestos, mold, rat 
feces, and other hazards in a Caltrans property. 

Joanne Nuckols, 1531 Ramona Avenue, thanked 
Assemblymember Portantino for requesting this 
Audit and thanked the Auditors for coming. She 
provided the Auditor with two DVDs of a Senate 
Transportation Committee Public Hearing held in 
South Pasadena in 1986 by Art Torres, State Senator 
at the time. Of particular note, she said, is that his 
staff person at the time was Dario Frommer, a former 
Assemblymember and current California Transporta
tion Commission member. The Commission makes 
the ultimate decision on the sale of state property, she 
said. She recommended that the State Auditor 
interview him. She presented fmdings from the DVD. 
She submitted a 1995 list of surplus properties that 
have not been sold. 

Lynn Bryan, Pasadena, who said she is a Board 
Member, Caltrans Tenants Association, thanked the 
City Council for inviting the State Auditor. She de
scribed poor property management and tenant abuse. 
The association has fought for decades, she said, and 
now wishes to bring documents and declarations to 
the State Auditor. She said pertinent documents, 
which were contained in a box she had at the podium, 
will be submitted to the State Auditor. 

Josefma Aguilar, 3511 Lock Avenue, EI Sereno, 
spoke about her longstanding interest in the issue. 
She invited the State Auditor to hold a hearing in EI 
Sereno so that residents can express their feelings 
about the blight created by Caltrans, "a slumlord." 
She requested an extension of the audit and a more 



MIN. VOL. 65 PAGE 152 06/20112 

private method to collect testimony. 

Odom Stamps, 318 Fairview Avenue, said that the 
City should revise its agreement with Caltrans to 
require that Caltrans' properties be occupied. He 
described how Caltrans used $30 million to undertake 
expensive repairs in the City of Pasadena without 
ever reaching the border of South Pasadena or EI 
Sereno. Many of the houses are unoccupied, he said. 
He described Caltrans properties on his block in poor 
condition. 

Emilia Lomeli-Fannon, 2018 Alpha Street, a Caltrans 
tenant, described deplorable conditions and poor 
management. She attempted to purchase the property 
without success. She said contractor oversight is 
lacking. 

Linda Krausen, 1109 Grevelia Street, a Caltrans 
tenant since 1993, was told she could buy the home. 
However, this was never allowed to go forward. She 
said this is affordable housing, and she asked about 
how revenues have been calculated that would be 
returned to the slate if lhe properties were sold. She 
described her experience with maintenance. She 
displayed a photograph on the overhead projector of a 
Caltrans property that is creating a fire hazard. 

Mayor Cacciotti asked about revenues that are 
received by the City each year from Caltrans for the 
properties. City Manager Gonzalez stated that the 
City receives a little more than $IOO,OOO/year. 
Finance Director Thai pointed out the line item on the 
budget. He said staff will look into how the amount is 
calculated and will report back to the City Council. 
Pasadena Mayor Bill Bogaard, in response to a 
question posed by Mayor Cacciotti, said he does not 
know how the amount is calculated. Mayor Cacciotti 
said the cities could request that Caltrans provide an 
explanation. 

Mayor Cacciotti re-opened the public comment 
period. 

Christ Sutton, previous speaker, said there is a 
specific code section in the Streets and Highways 
Code that states how the total is calculated. Mayor 



MIN. VOL. 65 PAGE 153 06/20/12 

Cacciotti requested that he provide the specific 
section information to the City, to Pasadena Mayor 
Bogaard, and to the State Auditor. 

Councilmember comments followed. Councilmem
bers expressed appreciation to the State Auditor for 
coming to the City and expressed their concerns. 
Mayor Pro Tern Putnam recommended identifying 
historically significant properties; obtaining an 
accurate inventory; obtaining a fair and accurate 
accounting of the expenditures related to maintaining 
the properties and the reasonableness of the costs; and 
obtaining an accurate accounting of the property tax 
revenues that would have been collected. He made 
remarks about the items the State Auditor will be 
evaluating. Councilmember Schneider read from a 
1997 report about poor maintenance of Caltrans 
properties and offered to submit this to the State 
Auditor. Councilmember Khubesrian said the health
related hazards that residents are being exposed to 
may be criminal. She asked about the next steps. 
Audit Principal Quarles invited all to provide infor
mation to Debbie Meador, Chief of Legislative 
Affairs, and said the final audit will be made public 
on August 2,2012. 

Debbie Meador, Chief of Legislative Affairs, 
California State Auditor, provided information about 
the audit follow-up process and responded to 
questions. 

Mayor Cacciotti made remarks about the $16 billion 
deficit impacting all elements of the state. He talked 
about state leases and how additional funds could be 
found. He spoke about the importance of calculating 
the total costs for property management. He displayed 
a photograph on the overhead projector of himself 
and others at the first eviction from a Caltrans 
property in 1995. 

Audit Principal Quarles expressed appreciation to the 
City Council for inviting the State Auditor to hear 
comments from the tenants of the SR-710 properties. 
She left the dais. 

Mayor Cacciotti called a brief recess, and representa
tives from the California State Auditor left the 



MIN. VOL. 65 

REVIEW SENATE BILL 204 
AND PROVIDE DIRECTION 

PAGE 154 06/20/12 

Council Chambers prior to the meeting reconvening. 
The meeting reconvened at 10:10 p.m. 

Transportation Manager Woods presented the staff 
report on Senate Bill 204, which he said is being 
carried by Senator Carol Liu. He read from her fact 
sheet on the bill, outlining its provisions relating to 
such topics as a SR-71O study area alternative trans
portation improvement plan, the authority of the 
California Transportation Commission, housing 
needs of Caltrans tenants, allocation of proceeds from 
the sale of Caltrans properties, and the advancement 
of funds when sufficient funds are not yet available 
from the sale of properties. He said the City Freeway 
and Transportation Commission does not endorse the 
bill unless amendments are made. He said the agenda 
packet contains a full analysis by Special Counsel 
Antonio Rossmann. He said that City Strategist Mike 
Roos is present and is available to provide 
recommendations. He said that Talin Mangioglu, 
District Director, Office of State Senator Carol Liu, is 
present. 

Special Counsel Rossmann was telephoned and 
participated by teleconference. 

Strategist Mike Roos made a presentation, recom
mending that the City Council support the bill in 
concept but insist on trigger event(s), e.g., when the 
route for the project is selected, or with the successful 
completion of the Environmental Impact Report. He 
advised the City not to become involved in the issue 
of the distribution of the proceeds. He responded to 
questions. 

Special Counsel Rossmann made a presentation, 
stating that the bill has promise on the release of the 
properties. However, he said, he recommended 
supporting the bill only if amended. The bill does not 
set a date certain for the release of the properties, he 
said. Two years from now is a reasonable date 
certain, he said. He said funds should be made 
available for projects in the 710 corridor and that the 
full range of alternatives for the proceeds, including 
public transit, should be possible. He responded to 
questions. 



MIN. VOL. 65 PAGE ISS 06/20/12 

On a request by Mayor Cacciotti, Strategist Roos 
provided an overview of the legislative process with 
this bill. If Metro, sponsor of the bill, sees the bill 
engulfed with unwanted amendments, he said, the bill 
will be dropped. The sponsor will probably not agree 
to a time certain but may agree to a triggering event, 
he said. If the City wants to be at the table, it should 
support the bill in concept, he said. 

On a question posed by Mayor Pro Tern Putnam, 
Special Counsel Rossmann said the City would be 
worse off (as opposed to be better off) if the bill 
passed with no amendment-primarily because of the 
issue of surplus properties. 

Strategist Roos responded to additional questions 
about surplus properties posed by Councilmember 
Khubesrian. Special Counsel Rossmann responded on 
this and related issues. 

Christopher Sutton, homeowner and business owner 
in Pasadena, attorney for 710 Caltrans tenants, said 
the bill adds MT A to an already complicated process. 
He said no funds will be available to rehabilitate the 
Caltrans properties. He opposed the bill. 

Joanne Nuckols, 1531 Ramona Avenue, opposed the 
bilL The City does not need the bill to have the 
properties sold, she said. 

Dr. Tom Williams, LA 32 Neighborhood Council, El 
Sereno resident, opposed the bilL There is no time or 
event certain, he said. 

Sam Burgess, 626 Prospect Avenue, made comments 
about the assumption that the surface route is dead. 
He said he spoke with the Metro chief engineer about 
the subsurface route, the "bridge open trench surface 
route." He said this will run along the same lines as 
the turmel, across Valley Boulevard and across the 
railroad tracks in El Sereno, and from there a 
combination of open trench and surface route will be 
constructed. He opposed the bill. 

Julianne Hines, District Director, Office of Anthony 
Portantino, Assemblymember, 44th District, said the 
Assemblymember believes the City Council is able to 



MIN. VOL. 65 PAGE 156 06/20/12 

evaluate this bill on its merit. She said he favors the 
proceeds from the Caltrans properties possibly being 
used for the Gold Line. He is opposed to allowing 
Metro to use the proceeds for the tunnel, she said. 

Discussion followed. Councilmember Schneider 
opposed the bill unless it is amended. Mayor Pro Tern 
Putnam said the City needs a seat at the table; he 
supported the bill with amendments. Councilmember 
Joe said he could support the bill with amendments 
related to a trigger event and that the proceeds not be 
used for the tunnel. Councilmember Khubesrian said 
that insisting on how the proceeds will be spent is not 
the best way to get the properties sold. She recom
mended that the two advisors craft amendment 
language. Mayor Cacciotti supported the bill with 
major amendments. 

Talin Mangioglu, District Director, State Senator 
Carol Liu, District 21, said the City Council's 
comments and position will be shared with the 
Senator, who understands the City's concerns. She 
said a trigger event is being contemplated, e.g., 
completion of the Environmental Impact Report. 
Questions and discussion followed. 

By roll call vote (4 ayes; 1 no, Councilmember 
Schneider), the City Council appointed the Mayor 
andlor a Councilmember to act on behalf of the City 
Council to work with the California legislature to 
support SB 204, but only if amended; authorized the 
preparation of a letter, if it is deemed wise or neces
sary by staff, Special Counsel Rossmann, and Stra
tegist Roos, to be signed by the Mayor expressing 
support for SB 204, if amended; authorized the 
Mayor, andlor a Councilmember, andlor staff, to 
attend legislative sessions in Sacramento, if neces
sary, and testify in support of amendments to SB 204; 
and directed staff, Special Counsel Rossmann, and 
City Strategist Roos to maintain an open dialogue 
with Senator Liu, her staff, and the State legislature to 
support SB 204, but only if amended; authorized staff 
to review and comment on potential wording changes 
to SB 204; and directed that the City Council be kept 
apprised of all developments in connection with this 
bill so that if a special meeting is needed, this can be 
scheduled. On an amendment proposed by Council-



MIN. VOL. 65 

PROVIDE DIRECTION 
REGARDING A REVIEW OF 
THE FAIR OAKS AVENUE 
CORRIDOR 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT: 
CERTIFICATE OF 
APPRECIATION 

COUNCILMEMBER 
COMMENTS 

PAGE 157 06/20/12 

member Joe and agreed to by the maker and seconder 
of the motion, the City Council said that support of 
the bill would be contingent on an amendment to the 
bill that would prohibit funding from the sale of 
Caltrans properties from being used for the proposed 
SR-710 tunnel, and on language inserted into the bill 
that would expedite the sale of the properties through 
trigger points or a series of events. 

(Putnam, Cacciotti) 

The telephone conference with Special Counsel 
Rossmann was terminated. 

Councilmember Schneider provided an overview of 
the proposal for the Freeway and Transportation 
Commission to review the Fair Oaks Avenue 
construction project. The Commission plans to ask 
community members to serve as volunteer 
consultants, he said, and no funds will be expended. 
The intention, he said, is to "fix the problem," not 
"fix the blame." 

Joanne Nuckols, no address stated, asked about hiring 
AECOM as consultants. Councilmember Schneider 
said that this firm is being engaged to review bulb 
outs, which is separate from this study. 

By roll call vote (5 ayes), the City Council directed 
the Freeway and Transportation Commission to 
review the Fair Oaks Avenue construction project, 
with the understanding that the charge is to look at 
the process only and to look at where the problems 
might have arisen, not to fix blame. It was understood 
that no paid consultants would be retained for the 
study. 

(Schneider, Putnam) 

Mayor Cacciotti said that Captain Danny De Angeles, 
who could not be present to receive a Certificate of 
Appreciation, was retiring after 31 years of 
employment. He read the certificate. 

Councihnember Khubesrian requested an update on 
the status of the two massage parlors on Huntington 
Drive. 



MIN. VOL. 65 

ADJOURNMENT 

5tJ~~ allyJ@by 
City Clerk 

PAGE 158 06/20112 

Councilmember Joe requested that staff prepare a 
report for the City Council on calls for service at the 
South Pasadena Convalescent Hospital, with options 
for consideration, seconded by Mayor Cacciotti. 

By consensus, the City Council adjourned at 11 :23 
p.m. 

fJ4/;t~. 
Michael A. Cacciotti 
Mayor 


